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on the Surface Survey of al-Hiba--Lagash, 194

The sixth season o} archzeologicsl field work at
al-Hiba--Lagash was devoted to & surface survey of the .
site. Work begsan on January 10, 1¢84 and ended March 10,
1984, Our thanks sre due to Dr. Mu'aeyed Sa'id Demirji,
President of the SOAH, and his co}leagues, perticularly

Dr. Abdul Sattar ATAzzawi, Director General of the Southern
Reéion, Dr. Munir Taha Yusef, Director of Archaeological N
Excavations, and Sd. Riath Al-2aiesi, Director of External
Relationé)who rrovided us with the surport necessary
to carry out our field work. The Metrorolitan Museum
of Art continued i1ts long-term financial backimg of the
al-Hibe project end contributions were made by the
Academic Senzte and the von Grunebasum Center for Near
Ezstern Studies st UCLA. We are grateful to Dr. Prudence
O. Earper gand Holly Pittman of the Metropolitan Museunm
and Profs. J. Sackett. and C. Meighan of the Institute
of Archaeology a% UCLA who skillfully dealt with numerous
sdministrative problems on our bekalf.

Staff for this season included Ellzabeth Carter, acting
director, 'S4 Hamzeh Eamood Famzeh, representztive of the
SOAE, end William Lincoln, archeeologist. Jane Moon-Killick,
archaeologist, Robert Britton, draftsman, and Dr. Jeremy
Black, epigrarher, all attached to tre British Archaeological
Expedition in Iraq, made working visits to the site and
generously offered their expert help. rrof. Donald P. Eansen,

Institute of Pine Arts, New York University, the rroject
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director

o

nd the field director of =11 previous excevations

site, 2ssisted us in the prepzratory phases of tze
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rroject. 7ithout his encouragement snd full access to

his records the work done thls season would not hasve been

possible.

Aims and Methods

The major goal of our work was to provide an overview
of the anclent settlement through a systematlic surface
recomaissznce of the site. Earlier inspectlon of the
ureﬁains indicated that much of the occupation was of N
"ED date and thet architectural traces of that period
were frequently visible on the surface. Thus & survey was

seen as a means of gaining some insight into the composition

of an esrly Sumerian city. Excavstions hed already

revealed the Bagara of Vingirsu (Area B) and the IB.GAL

of Inanna (Area A), two of the major temple complexes

as well as-a largé pert of a multi-roomed public building

(Area C), all of the ED period (Eansen 1978). Therefore

we hoped to identify industrial and residential guarters.
Eowever, al-Hiba is one of the largest sites in

southern Mesorotamia (mzximum dimensions--3600 meters

N.S. by 1200 meters E.W.). The size of the site, our

available resources end’ the ultimste alms of our research

indiczted that the most efficlent way to eprrosch the

task was to utilize a random sampling rrocedure. An

excellent contour survey of the mound st a scale of

1/2000 permitted w. Lincoln to work out a systematic

unaligned random sample of 10% (10 m? in each 100 m?

grid section) on paper. In the fiesld, using 2 rlane table

sad comress 1t wazs posslble to set-up over concrete

traverse stetions whose positions and co-ordinztes were given
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on the base map. From these fixed roints we ran east-west
traverse loops across the mound locating the soutawest
corner of each collection unit. The size and shege of the
units was chosen for ease of comparison with excavated
materizls. Distances between the points hed been
calculated in advance and were measured on the ground
using a tape; zngles were slted using arn open si te alidade.
A 1/50 plan of the 10 m° and a 1/500 sketch of the
.surrounding grid sguare were made. Then ell material
‘found on the surface was collected excert vnere
it proved impractical, e.g. areas densely covered with
small bits of slag or sherds. Body sherds were counted in
the field. The rest of the collections Qere washed
and recorded in the lsboratory. -
The pottery wes coded for computer-aided znalysis
using a typological system based on that compiled Dy EFrof.
E. 0. OchsenscHeger on the besis of excavated finds. The
small objects, mostly flint tools, clay sickle fragments,
and bits of coprer/bronze objects were classed according
to .materisl, shapeand size.

A Preliminerv Descrivtion of the Results

Only further analysls will allow us to ewaluate fully
the successes and failures of our metnods. The summary
below rerresents a preliminary =ssessment and 1s not
for publicetion. The site has been divided into four
ma jor sections from South to Yorth. It is further sub-
divided into lettered areas asg shown on figure 1l.

The southern area from S. 1490 to S. &00
£

The mein feature of the section is the IB.GAL



of Zn-ana-tunl excavated in Area A et the southeastern

edge of the mound. Observetions and collections detween
area A . end approximestely the W. £00 iine suggest the
remains of privete houses of the late ED period. Numerous
draine all apparently of late ED date were noted.

Most of the preserved occupations levels are rrobsbly
of a somewhat earlier date. lhe mounds rising around
.the N. S. 00 base line sre clearly assoclated with
ceramic manufecture. wasters, slag, fragments of kiln
wells and kiln stands (fig. ?) are common as are the
circular outlines of kilns or pits assoclated with pottery
production. Some microlithic tools (drills, burins, "bullet”
cores) were collected around S. 1700-E. 100 and this area

is worthy of a more detailed exzaminztion (see below p.

for a description of similar tools from the northern

mounds ). Burned brick walls were eroding nesr N. 875 and

We. 370. These were reminiscent of the walls noted in

Area C (see below p. 6) before excavetion (cf. Hansen 1¢7€:
74),

The south-central area from S. €00 to 00

Yorth of N. 900 and east of E-% 00 1s & large roughly semi-

circular grea that hes the ag

H

ea

a1

ence of a2 dry lake bed
and hazas been floo~ed at different times iIn the past by
the marsh. This erea wzs not collected systemetically.
The few rises examined show traces of kiln debris.

The wgstern side of the sector includes area G where over

ceven meters of SD 1 trash were excavated vefore the water-

-
s

tzble was re-ched (Eansen 1€7%: 7€). This areg, like the



southern secto% was an industriszl zone with numerous
kilns. Differences in the ceramics suggest that ttrese
ijnstallations are to be dated to the ED I-II time renge.
Several sherds of TUruk period types were found indicating
the possibility of an earlier occupation in this area.

'The sector around S. 4350 and W. 400 could prorfitebly
be planned from surface traces as etreets (?), walls, and
courtyzrds seem clezrly visible in certain lizhts.
‘This érea appears to be a residentiel quarter. Three lzrge
wnite stones were seen eroding out near S. 300 and W. 460Q.

They may be part of a large courtyard belonging to 2 bullding
with 2 rlan like a carsyanseral Again each of these
sections should be planned znd collected in the future.
The north-central ares from 00 to N. 1000

The north-centrzl area includes two of the major
excavetions, the Bagara (irea 3) 2nd the late ED "edministrative
tuilding™ in area C (Hansen 167¢). Collections sround
area B reflected accurately the seqguence discovered in the
excavations of that sector. Sherds of IL-OB date were
predominant with scattered fragments of ED-Tr III pottery
in most .of the collection units.

'he survey laentililea an 1ncustrial area of IL-OB-date
in ¥ 700-900 to 00-E.00. The mounds in N. ?250-310, E. 350 -
470 are also probably second millennium kiln mounds; while
the mound at 700-800, E. 500-600 is covered with

ZD kiln debris and stands like an islznd in +the midéle of

2 once-flooded area.



The collections from Area C &lso included some
pottery of rost ED date. The intense fire that destroyed
the exczveted bullding appears to h=ve cprezd over almost
the entire zrea. Mzny traces »f walls are easily visiole
and could be majped with little problem. Qur collectlons
contained numerous pleces of finished copper ltems as
well as a large (aproximately 4 em® ) chunk of unfinished*
1apié lzzuli. #n hitherto uareported occupation of the
Islamic period wzs 1identified on the eastern edge of &rea_
C in zreas D end L (fig. 1). Collections included |
numerous fragments of glass and sherds of a soft yellow-
buff ware covered with blue or blue-green allover glaze
(cf. Adams 1S81: 238-239). Most interesting was a four
footed "molar" flzsk possibly of Sth or 10th century date

(K¥hnel 1971 :206-207). (fig. 4).

IToscribed brick fragrente of Amer-Suen (ci:2046-2038 B.C.)

were found at N. 320 eand W. 110 ané an inscribed cone
dated to the reign of En-ana-tum was found at W. 500 E.
450, (See Dr. Black's note for full details.) Aalthough

both these texts were known fromezrlierfinds on the site

~

their presence in the random szmple squares is of metrodological

interest .
The northern area from Y. 1000-7. £100
The area 1s separzted from the adjacent north-central
zone by a low-lying chanl (poseibly an old cenal bed)
that is blocked by a recent earthen dam ruaning from . €50

and Z.W. 00 to J. 1020 and E. 100. The occuration



2%

in the northern sector can be compared to that identifled
in the southern zone. All the mounds were covered with

kiln debris. Residential areas were possibly located on the flatter

‘zones. The pbtﬁérf from the kiln méundé'sﬁggests that stands were the

primary product of the large kilns in N, 1500 and E. 800.
At W. L1500 and E. 480 z zone of errroximetely 25 m<
was covered with a lasrge number of broken sea (?) shells.
Collection of a 10m° located on this mound led to the dlscovery
of a number of microlithic tools including drills, saws:
borers and several "bullet™ cores. Lthis zssemblage is
génerally thought to be characteristic of much earlier
periods. Its assoclation at 2l-Eiba with ED ceramics andé
the shell midden date them to the third millennium
(cf. Tosi and Fiperno 1972 for a similar assemblage of
third millennium date frbm Tere Eissar.) Tnfortunsately
only a few finiched producté (several beads and fragments
of worked shell) were found and thus we cannot say
exactly what was produced here.

Traces of streets and walls were.easily visible on the
flanks of the main northern kiln mound and immediately
east of the shell mound. Farther to the east two lerge
round structures and some walls and a pavement of baked
plano-convex bricks were locsted at N. 1285 and E. 1385.

The northern tip of the site from ¥. 1800 to N. £100
wag salt covered and disturbed by & modern ruin whose walls

are still standing. Some treces of I1-0B meterial wzs

found here but it was mixed with sherds of ED date.



Frospects for Future Reseasrch

lhe location and recording of extant surfsce remains
combined with a study of associated meterisls should
rrovide an invaluable aid in planning future research
at the site. Through most of its history and pzrticulerly
in the =D period al-Hiba-Lagash hed a flourishing
ceremic industry. The relatively indestructable nature
of the kilns and their waste products no doubt leads i
fo their over-rerresentation and the masking.of
associated technologies. Unly a finer grained survey of
the industrial areas would lezd to t@e discovery of these
remains, but. the shell mound and oué own surface observations
indicates their presence. The State Organization for
Antquities and Heritage has kindly granted us.a loan of
some of our finds so that we mey continue our egnalysis
of the material. Hopefully these stﬁdies;will'allow us

to speculate on the size of the settlement in each of

its major perlods of occuration.

Elizabeth Carter /]
Dept. Near Eastern Languages
and Cultures

UCLA




INSCAIBED O3JECTS

JEREMY A. BuACK

L ncte on the inscriptions found at al-Hiba (Lagash) during the 18984 survey.

pasy g

CLAY NaAIL (d. 500 znd E. 450) BRICK FRAGHMENTS N.380 and W.110)
During the survey a fragmentary clay n=il and three brick fragments were recoverec.

all from the éurface of the site. The clzy nail carries the first part of an

P

inscription from the reign of En-ana-tum I 1aeqt1cal with the first part of

Sollberger Corpus En.J 10, clou A 1 and with Biggs At Hiba no. 2. The first of

these is an inscription of Lumma-banda, a son of En-ana-tum. (The regding of the
name, written lum-ma-TUR, 1s uncertain. Lumma-banda was possibly a younger son,
since it was not he but En-metena who succesaed En-ana-tum.) The second, with

almost identical wording, is an inscription of one Zuni-aldugud. Roth commemorzte

the mamufaciure cf clay nails for the Z-zn= og,Inéna. Nails bezring these inscrip-
tions zre r2latively cormon: R®igss Al Kibz nos. 43;-54,“55,.57 and-61 afeAprcbably
all duplicztes of no. 2, while nos. 4 and S probably duplicate Sollberger Zn.I 10,
clou A. Since the seconcd column is missing, it is impossible to say whoses name
should be restored in the present case. A similarly worded inscripticn is t
of the scrite Lu-sngura, see Hallo, JNZS 17 (1958), p. 215, also comnemorating the
mznufacture of neails for the E-zna,

The head and part of the shaft are preserved; the text runs around the shaft, as

follows:
i ii
A
en-an-ni-iun . [PN
ens?{ girri (hIn) mu-d{m-dfm

. ki
lagss é—an-na-ke
4
\
mu pad-ca -na-d
o) mu-na ug4]

d

inana-ka-ke
.4

eb-gal

/
€-an-na

kur-kur-ra mu-na-diri-ga-a

uj_ba



npt the time when En-ana-tum, ensi of lagas , elect of lnang, built the
Eb-gal and made the E-anz famous for her throughout the world, [PN had clay
nails made and ordered them for the E-an%".

Notes

: g . 2o R — .
1. Gramaticallv the first clause is a2 nominalised clause dependent on its regens,

the following clause introduced by u,-ba: "dﬁcn/afue‘..., at that time...m

2. The interpretation of the word writitlen wﬂth the sign KTR as fclzay nall' followc

the sug=estion of Jacobsen, see JK3S 17 p. 215 n. 23, For the reading girri, see

.

Kzllo in E'TCA 33 p. @ and n. &7 Jacohsen's sugaesT ion is not followed by Rizr-s,

who statzs that the nails recerd "the buiidine of the KI2" (Al Eibz, p. 3). But
the reduplicated verb form implies plurality of the object made and it is clear
that at least three people "made KI3s" for the E-ana, and possibly for other buil-
dings (one of §un1-=lau:ud's nails was found at Zurghul, Biggs Al Eibz no, 64).
Thls well suggests the contribution of a2 npumber of persorns of high, but not the

highest, social stztus, to a deccrative or awdliary feature cf moderate expense.

3. The trenslation of dug; as 'ordered' in the restored secend portion is uncerteir.
, _ 'S

\
.

The brick fragnents were zll found in one ten-meire square jusv south-ezst of
the Ragara temple. Two join; it is lixely but not certzin that the third belcngs

to the same brick. A subsecuen:t search in the same zrea failed to find any further

fragments. The fragments are of gresnish bexed brick, w~ith the surlace muc“

l

amaged by over-firing, and I was not able to make s-nse of more than the first two

> .

lines, which are encugh to ascribe the stzm> to Amar-Suen. A brick of Amar-Suen's

zs fo ; :
was found during the first season tnear Area B! i.e. in the szmwz general area (see

igze A1 Hiba no. 4€). A number of Amar-Suen's brick inscriptiions begin in the

>



Bof - o

same way, with the king's name followed by his special personzl epithet fchosen by
- . " . T“ppur', e.g. Thureau-Dangin SAKT pv. 1¢8ff., ®Brikcs B, C and D.  The
thickness of the frazments is about 6cm. The legible part of the stamp reads:

dzmar-dEN.ZU

dexn.1fL KI[—a den-1{1-le m pd—da

During the course of the survey a visit was made to Tello (Girsu), where two frag-
ments of clay nails were found, bhoth with the same inscription_ of Gudea, that re-

gistered zs mrick F by Thureau-Dangin SAXT ppo. 142ff%.
¢nin-gf{r-su / ur-sag ka d {1-14-1= L21. i N-dé-z { FARSS
in-g ur-szz kzl-ga / den-1{1-14-rz / lugel-a-ni / ga-ds-2 / ensi / lagasa™/
N _ 4 - .._é 4 . d A ~mu¥=r~ < - A\ L " y
ni-du,-e pa mu-na / é-ninnu-%imdugud™S8A-babhar-ra-ri / mu-na-du / ¥i-bi mu-nz-gi
_nT¥or his master Kinmgirsu, Enlil's mighty Eero, Gudea ensi of.lagaesh publicly . . —
performed aporopriate rites, and rebuilt and restored for him his E-ninnu-Imdugud-bsber

. . . / =
The text had earlier been found on a clay nzil, see Dec. pl. 38, as well &s on a door-

socket and a tablet, see SAKI p. 1l42.

Jeremy Black
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LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

1--Site map showing major finds of the survey
2--Surfece pottery of the Early Dynastic Feriod

S--Surface pottery snd finds of the late third-
early second millennium B.C.

4--Surfzce rottery and glass of the Islamic Feriod
S5--Inscribed objects from the survey of al-Hiba

6--Inscribed objects from Telloh
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ILLUSTRATED VUBJECTS

Fig. 2

1. Conical bowl (5V 7/3)

2. Conical cup (.5 Y 7/2)

3. Conical cup, base (35Y &/2)
4, FKiln stand (?) (2.5 Y 7/2)
5. Conical bowl stznd (5Y 6/2)
6. temmed-dish base (5YR 5/6)
7. Stemmed-dish plate (5Y 7/3)

8. Spouted jar with reserved slip-
(s1lip-5Y 7/3: ware- ©.5YR 5/4)

‘1§

e
m

(W)}

1. Jar neck (°.5Y 7/4)

2. Step-shouldered jer (5Y /4)
3. Grooved jar rim (5Y 7/3).

4. Ledge-rim pot (25y &/2)

5. Goblet foot (T5Y &/2)

6. Terra-cottz bed model (5Y 7/24)

Fig. 4

1.. Ewer neck (5Y 8/3)

2. FEandeled jar neck (5Y 6/3)

3. Corrugated pot (?) rim (5Y 7/3)

4, Jzr rim znd shoulder
(slip-bY 7/2; ware- 10 YR 7/4)

Incised decorztion under dark blue-

green glaze.
5. Same as above
6. Fointed base (5Y 6/3)
7. Clear glass bowl
8

« Cut glass bottle

(o)

. Turben handlie (10 YR #/3)

Locus

S. 651 W. 570

S. 5P0 w. 470

N. 1750 W. 470

N. 140 V. €0

N. 1500 E. 480

S. 1390 W. 130

S. €00 E. 70

N. 1655 E. 720

N. 580 E. 1890

‘Y. 480 W. 70

V. 60 E. 40
N, 580 =T. 150
N. 560 E. 150

N. 480 wW. 190

Ares D=L~
Area D=L
Area D-L

4rea D-L

N, 70 E. 649
M. 120 E:570
Area D

Area D-L
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CLAY NAIL (N. 500 E. 450) BRICX FRAGMENTS (N. 380 w. 110)

FIG. 5--INSCRIEZLD JBJZCTS FRUM TEE SURVEY UF AL-ZI3A=--LaGaSE
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FIG. 6--IISCRIBED CLAY NAIL FRAGMENTS FRUM TELLO--GIRSU
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